By-Laws Of the Board of Regents College of Micronesia-FSM

Amended January 14, 2013

Article I: Board of Regents Meetings	Recommended Revisions
Section 1. Place of Meetings All meetings of the Board shall be held at a location as may be designated for that purpose from time to time by the Board.	
Section 2. Annual Meeting	Replace the bolded sections with:
The annual meeting of the Board shall be held each year on the first Monday of December. At the annual meeting, the Board shall elect officers, consider reports of the affairs of the College and transact such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting. The board shall also meet on the third Monday of May of each year. If either of these days falls on a legal holiday in the jurisdiction where the meeting is being held, then the meeting shall be held on the next succeeding business day. If it appears that a quorum will not be realized on those days, the Board may, by approval of three members, set an alternative date. Notice of regular meetings shall be given in accordance with the legislation establishing the College. Attendance at any meeting, regular or special, by a Regent shall be conclusively deemed a waiver of notice of that meeting unless objection is made at the outset of such meeting to the failure to give proper notice.	The Board shall hold quarterly meeting to be rotated among the (four states/six campuses). The first meeting of the fiscal year shall be the annual meeting to be held the first Monday of December. At the annual meeting, the Board shall elect officers, consider reports of the affairs of the College and transact such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting. The board shall also hold three other regular meetings the second Monday in March, the third Monday in Monday in May and the fourth Monday in August. If it appears that a quorum will not be realized on those days, the Board may, by approval of three members, set an alternative date.
Section 3. Special Meetings When a special meeting is called on the initiative of the chairperson, at least thirty (30) days notice of the special meeting shall be given to all members. Notice may be given in person, by telephone, facsimile, email, or by mailing a copy of the notice to the mailing address of the respective Board members. In computing the notice requirement under this section, the time period begins to run from the date of mailing or transmission. The thirty (30) days notice may be waived by the Board by an affirmative vote	

led phrase.

d) An amendment to the by-laws.	
Section 7: Rules of Order	
All meetings of the Board shall be conducted in accordance with the latest	
edition of Robert's Rules of Order, except where it is inconsistent with these by-	
laws or any other applicable law.	
Section 8: Public Involvement	
All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public, except those executive	
sessions authorized by law, which will be announced by the chairperson.	
Article II: Officers of the Board and the President	
Section 1: Chairperson	
Section 1. Champerson	
The chairperson shall, if present, preside at all meetings of the Board of	
Regents and exercise and perform such other powers and duties as may be	
from time to time assigned by the Board of Regents or prescribed by law or these by-laws.	
these by-laws.	
Section 2: Vice Chairperson	
In the absence or disability of the chairperson, the vice chairperson shall	
perform the duties of the chairperson, and when so acting shall have all the	
powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the chairperson. The vice	
chairperson shall have such other powers and perform such other duties from	
time to time as prescribed by these by-laws or applicable law.	
Section 3: Secretary/Treasurer	
The secretary/treasurer of the Board shall keep, or cause to be kept, a book of	
minutes of all Board meetings with the time and place of holding, whether	
regular or special, and if special, how authorized the notice thereof given, the	
names those Regents present, and the proceedings thereof.	
The secretary/treasurer shall give, or cause to be given through the President,	
notice of all the meetings of the Board as required by the by-laws to be given.	
The second and the standard of the board at required by the by laws to be given.	
The secretary/treasurer shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and	
maintained, adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business	
transactions associated with the operations of the Board of Regents and the	

administrative officer and staff of the College.	
The secretary/treasurer may delegate to the President, or personally exercise, the following responsibilities: to deposit all moneys and other valuables in the name and to the credit of the Board of Regents; to disburse funds as may be ordered by the Board; and to make available to any Regent and the independent auditors the books of account for their inspection at all reasonable times.	
Section 4: President	
The President of the College shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the College and the official advisor to and executive agent of the Board of Regents and its committees. The President shall, as educational and administrative head of the College, exercise a general superintendence over all affairs of the institution, and brings such matters to the attention of the Board as are appropriate to keep the Board fully informed in meeting its policy-making responsibilities. Furthermore, the President shall have the power, on behalf of the Regents, to perform all acts and execute all documents to make effective the actions of the Board or its committees.	
Article II: Record and Reports	
Section 1: Records	
The Board shall maintain adequate and correct accounts, books and records of its properties. All such books, records and accounts shall be kept at the office of the President.	
Section 2: Inspection of Books and Records	
All books and records of the Board, except for records of executive session of the Board or records expressly deemed non-public by the chairperson, shall be open to inspection at the office of the President.	
Section 3: Certification and Inspection of By-Laws	
The original or a copy of these by-laws, as amended or otherwise altered to date, certified by the secretary, shall be open to inspection by the public at the office of the President.	
Section 4: Checks, Drafts, etc	

All checks, drafts, or other orders for payment of money, notes, or other	
evidence of indebtness, issued in the name of and on behalf of the Board, shall	
be signed or endorsed by such person or persons and in such manner as shall	
be determined from to time by resolution of the Board.	
Article IV: Committees of the Board	
Section 1: Committees	
Special committees may be established as deemed necessary by the Board. The chairperson may establish and appoint Board members to a special committee, subject to the review and approval of the Board at its next regular meeting. Decisions of committees shall be made by majority vote.	
Section 2: Committee Decision	Add to end of section: Decisions of committees shall be
Decisions of committees of the board may be made by polling members by	forwarded to the Board for official decision.
mail, facsimile, e-mail, or telephone. The results of such polling shall be	
certified by the secretary of the respective committee.	
certified by the secretary of the respective committee. Section 3: Committee Membership	Delete bolded section.
, ,	Delete bolded section. Add: Board committee will be composed of Regents only.
Section 3: Committee Membership Except as otherwise provided, additional members, including members who are not on the Board of Regents, may be appointed to Board	
Section 3: Committee Membership Except as otherwise provided, additional members, including members who are not on the Board of Regents, may be appointed to Board committees. A majority of each committee shall be Regents.	
Section 3: Committee Membership Except as otherwise provided, additional members, including members who are not on the Board of Regents, may be appointed to Board committees. A majority of each committee shall be Regents. Article V: Statement of Ethical Conduct Section 1: Standard of Conduct	
Section 3: Committee Membership Except as otherwise provided, additional members, including members who are not on the Board of Regents, may be appointed to Board committees. A majority of each committee shall be Regents. Article V: Statement of Ethical Conduct Section 1: Standard of Conduct Board members shall not participate in any action involving a possible conflict of interest or from realizing a financial gain, other than compensation provided	
Section 3: Committee Membership Except as otherwise provided, additional members, including members who are not on the Board of Regents, may be appointed to Board committees. A majority of each committee shall be Regents. Article V: Statement of Ethical Conduct Section 1: Standard of Conduct Board members shall not participate in any action involving a possible conflict of interest or from realizing a financial gain, other than compensation provided pursuant to law. A Regent shall be considered to have a conflict of interest if:	
Section 3: Committee Membership Except as otherwise provided, additional members, including members who are not on the Board of Regents, may be appointed to Board committees. A majority of each committee shall be Regents. Article V: Statement of Ethical Conduct Section 1: Standard of Conduct Board members shall not participate in any action involving a possible conflict of interest or from realizing a financial gain, other than compensation provided pursuant to law. A Regent shall be considered to have a conflict of interest if: a) Such Regent has existing or potential financial or other interests which	
Section 3: Committee Membership Except as otherwise provided, additional members, including members who are not on the Board of Regents, may be appointed to Board committees. A majority of each committee shall be Regents. Article V: Statement of Ethical Conduct Section 1: Standard of Conduct Board members shall not participate in any action involving a possible conflict of interest or from realizing a financial gain, other than compensation provided pursuant to law. A Regent shall be considered to have a conflict of interest if: a) Such Regent has existing or potential financial or other interests which impair or might reasonably appear to impair such member's	
Section 3: Committee Membership Except as otherwise provided, additional members, including members who are not on the Board of Regents, may be appointed to Board committees. A majority of each committee shall be Regents. Article V: Statement of Ethical Conduct Section 1: Standard of Conduct Board members shall not participate in any action involving a possible conflict of interest or from realizing a financial gain, other than compensation provided pursuant to law. A Regent shall be considered to have a conflict of interest if: a) Such Regent has existing or potential financial or other interests which impair or might reasonably appear to impair such member's independent unbiased judgment in the discharge of the Regent's	
Section 3: Committee Membership Except as otherwise provided, additional members, including members who are not on the Board of Regents, may be appointed to Board committees. A majority of each committee shall be Regents. Article V: Statement of Ethical Conduct Section 1: Standard of Conduct Board members shall not participate in any action involving a possible conflict of interest or from realizing a financial gain, other than compensation provided pursuant to law. A Regent shall be considered to have a conflict of interest if: a) Such Regent has existing or potential financial or other interests which impair or might reasonably appear to impair such member's independent unbiased judgment in the discharge of the Regent's responsibilities to the College, or:	
Except as otherwise provided, additional members, including members who are not on the Board of Regents, may be appointed to Board committees. A majority of each committee shall be Regents. Article V: Statement of Ethical Conduct Section 1: Standard of Conduct Board members shall not participate in any action involving a possible conflict of interest or from realizing a financial gain, other than compensation provided pursuant to law. A Regent shall be considered to have a conflict of interest if: a) Such Regent has existing or potential financial or other interests which impair or might reasonably appear to impair such member's independent unbiased judgment in the discharge of the Regent's responsibilities to the College, or: b) Such Regent is aware that a family member or any organization in	
Section 3: Committee Membership Except as otherwise provided, additional members, including members who are not on the Board of Regents, may be appointed to Board committees. A majority of each committee shall be Regents. Article V: Statement of Ethical Conduct Section 1: Standard of Conduct Board members shall not participate in any action involving a possible conflict of interest or from realizing a financial gain, other than compensation provided pursuant to law. A Regent shall be considered to have a conflict of interest if: a) Such Regent has existing or potential financial or other interests which impair or might reasonably appear to impair such member's independent unbiased judgment in the discharge of the Regent's responsibilities to the College, or: b) Such Regent is aware that a family member or any organization in which such Regent or family member is an officer, director, employee,	
Except as otherwise provided, additional members, including members who are not on the Board of Regents, may be appointed to Board committees. A majority of each committee shall be Regents. Article V: Statement of Ethical Conduct Section 1: Standard of Conduct Board members shall not participate in any action involving a possible conflict of interest or from realizing a financial gain, other than compensation provided pursuant to law. A Regent shall be considered to have a conflict of interest if: a) Such Regent has existing or potential financial or other interests which impair or might reasonably appear to impair such member's independent unbiased judgment in the discharge of the Regent's responsibilities to the College, or: b) Such Regent is aware that a family member or any organization in which such Regent or family member is an officer, director, employee, member, partner, trustee or controlling stockholder has such existing or	
Section 3: Committee Membership Except as otherwise provided, additional members, including members who are not on the Board of Regents, may be appointed to Board committees. A majority of each committee shall be Regents. Article V: Statement of Ethical Conduct Section 1: Standard of Conduct Board members shall not participate in any action involving a possible conflict of interest or from realizing a financial gain, other than compensation provided pursuant to law. A Regent shall be considered to have a conflict of interest if: a) Such Regent has existing or potential financial or other interests which impair or might reasonably appear to impair such member's independent unbiased judgment in the discharge of the Regent's responsibilities to the College, or: b) Such Regent is aware that a family member or any organization in which such Regent or family member is an officer, director, employee,	

Section 2: Disclosure	
All Regents shall disclose to the Board any possible conflict of interest at the earliest practicable time. Any Regent who is uncertain whether a conflict of interest may exist in any matter may request the Board or committee to resolve the question by majority vote based on full disclosure of pertinent facts.	
Section 3: Abstention of Amendments	
No Regent shall participate in Board proceedings as Regent, or vote on any matter under consideration at a Board or committee meeting in which such Regent has a conflict of interest. The minutes of such meeting shall reflect that a disclosure was made and that the Regent having the conflict abstained from participation and voting.	
Section 4: Employment with the College	
No Regent shall accept paid or unpaid employment with the College while a Regent. For three years after the termination of his term as a Regent, no Regent may accept a position or other employment with the College that was created during his term as a Regent.	
Section 5: Ethical Violation	
Charges by any person that a board member has violated laws and regulations governing board behavior or the board's code of ethics shall be directed to the board chairman. The board chair may establish an ad hoc committee to examine the charges and recommend further courses of action to the board. Possible courses of action include: a) If alleged behavior violates laws governing board behavior, legal counsel may be sought and the violations referred to the Attorney General as provided for in law. b) If the alleged behavior violates board policy on ethical conduct, the board chair shall alert the board member in question regarding the violation of policy, the board may discuss the violation at a board meeting and affirm its policy expectation, and/or the board may move to censure the regent.	
If the board chairman is perceived to have violated the code, the vice chairman of the board shall pursue resolution. (1/14/13)	

Article VI: Amendment to By-Laws	
Section 1: Voting Requirement	
New by-laws may be adopted or these by-laws may be repealed or amended at a Board meeting by a majority vote of the members of the Board attending thereat.	
Section 2: Record of Amendments	
Whenever an amendment or new by-law is adopted, it shall be copied in the book of by-law with the original by-laws, in the appropriate place. If any of the by-laws is repealed, the fact of the repeal with the date of the meeting at which the repeal was enacted shall be stated.	